
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 35 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, December 7, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Rezoning Public Hearing 
4. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC to rezone 117.54 acres at 475 Pea 

Ridge Road from R-1R to AG-2 [Map 089, Parcel 024, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 
6. Approval of the Agenda 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 13, 2018 (staff-CC) 
8. Discussion and possible action regarding the Resolution to Amend ACCG Defined Benefit for 

Putnam County employees (staff-CM) 
9. Discussion and possible action on additional paving (staff-CM) 
10. Awarding of RFP 18-42001-002 Professional Engineering Design Services for Scott Road 

Extension (staff-CM) 
11. Special Presentations 

 
Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 
13. County Attorney Report 
14. Commissioner Announcements 

 
Closing 
15. Adjournment 

  

1



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 2 of 35 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC to rezone 117.54 acres at 475 Pea 

Ridge Road from R-1R to AG-2 [Map 089, Parcel 024, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

  

2



Request by Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC to rezone 117.54 
acres at 475 Pea Ridge Road from R-1R to AG-2. [Map 089, Parcel 024, District 

2]. *   
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 117.54 acres from R-1R to AG-2.  This 

property extends from Pea Ridge Road over to Martin Luther King Jr. Drive.   This 
property was rezoned from AG to R-1R on December 18, 2007 for a single family 

residential subdivision (Royal Ridge Subdivision).  The property was never 
developed as such and the applicant is proposing to create an equestrian based 
development with 5-acre tracts.  The proposed use is for agriculture which is 

consistent with the existing and proposed use.  The Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use indicates the future land use as Agriculture/Forestry.  Currently there are 

AG-1 zoned properties adjacent to this property which are suitable to the proposed 
use in the AG-2 district. There is also a C-1 zoned property adjacent to this 
property. Therefore, the proposed use will not affect the existing use value or 

usability of adjacent or nearby properties. The AG-2 zoning will have minimal 
impact on Pea Ridge Road or adjacent properties. The proposed use will not cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or services.  
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 117.54 acres from R-1R to 
AG-2. 
  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 117.54 
acres from R-1R to AG-2. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Friday, November 1, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration 
Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 204, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
Present:  Joel Hardie, Alan Oberdeck, James Marshall, Jr.  
Staff Present:  Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden, and Courtney Andrews 

 
Mr. Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC represented this request.  He 

stated that the applicant is requesting to rezone 117.54 acres at 475 Pea Ridge 
Road from R-1R to AG-2. [Map 089, Parcel 024, District 2]. *  Mr. McAllister stated 
that this property is located on Pea Ridge Road and extends over to Martin Luther 

King Jr. Drive.  He stated that the applicant is interested in rezoning this property in 
order to create a subdivision with 5-acre parcels for equestrian uses and the AG-2 

District requirements are tailor made for this type of development.  Mr. Marshall 
asked if this is the property with a partially built entrance gate.  Mr. McAllister 

3



replied yes.  He added that there is a road into the property which was created by 
another developer.  Mr. McAllister stated that the applicant is proposing to make 

the lots larger than what is allowed in the R-1R District requirements and that with 
an equestrian type scenario this type of zoning (AG-2) allows for additional 

structures such as a barn.  Mr. McAllister stated that the Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use illustrates this as being an agriculture area and coincides with the 
request.  He added that the R-1R does not allow for the accessory and equestrian 

uses they needed for the proposed development. Mr. Marshall stated that Mr. Ward 
had visited the property and he had no problems with the request.  Mr. Oberdeck 

stated that he has driven by this property for the last 10 years and is happy 
someone is finally developing this property.  No one spoke in opposition to this 
request.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 117.54 acres from R-1R to 

AG-2. 
   
Motion for approval of staff recommendation made by Member Oberdeck, 

Seconded by Member Hardie.  
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hardie, Member Oberdeck.  All 

approved.   
 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 14 of 35 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 13, 2018 (staff-CC) 

  

14



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 13, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, November 13, 2018 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at 

approximately 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 6:31 p.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
2. Invocation 
Pastor James Smith gave the invocation. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Hersey led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
4. Public Comments 
None 

 

15



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 13, 2018 

5. Approval of Agenda 
Motion to approve the Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 16, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - October 16, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - November 2, 2018 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 
d. Approval of Minutes - November 2, 2018 Public Hearing/Called Meeting (staff-CC) 
e. Approval of Revised Final Plat for Enclave at Waterfront (staff-P&D) 
f. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Section 5311 Program FY2020 Grant 

Application (staff-Transit) 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Addison 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 
7. Approval of 2018 Budget Amendment #3 (staff-Fin) 
Motion to approve 2018 Budget Amendment #3 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Addison 

(Copy of amendment made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 
8. Approval of the 2019 BOC Meeting Schedule (staff-CC) 
Motion to approve the 2019 BOC Meeting Schedule 
Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Addison 

(Copy of schedule made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
9. Discussion and possible action regarding the Resolution passed on November 2, 2018 (SH) 
Chairman Hersey expressed his concern regarding procedure at the 11/2/18 called meeting; 

specifically taking actions other than the extension of the SDS.  Mr. Doug Eaves advised that 

SDS form 2s were received this afternoon at 5 pm, but a few corrections need to be made.  Once 

corrections are made, staff will review again and give to BOC to review.  Once satisfied, the 

Chairman can sign. No action was taken. 

 
 

 
 

16



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 13, 2018 

10. Discussion and possible action regarding the Consolidation Study prepared by MGRC (SH) 
Chairman Hersey advised that he was looking for direction from the board regarding 

rescheduling the MGRC presentation of the Consolidation Study.  It was recommended to 

schedule the meeting after the first of the year to allow the new commissioners to be a part of the 

discussion.  No action was taken. 

  
11. Discussion and possible action regarding the IGA between Putnam County, Baldwin County 

and the Sinclair Water Authority (SH) 
Chairman Hersey advised that he was looking for direction from the board regarding the IGA 

between Putnam County, Baldwin County, and SWA.  It was recommended to wait on this issue 

until after the new year.  No action was taken. 

 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 
County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 Submission of GEBCorp plan documents regarding the conversion of leave into a 457 

plan (at no cost changes to the county) will be on the next agenda 

 Womack Paving bid coming out of SPLOST#8 will be on the next agenda 

 Thanked and congratulated everyone for this year’s balanced budget 

 
13. County Attorney Report 
No report. 

 
14. Commissioner Announcements 
Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Foster: absent 

 

Commissioner Addison: none 

 

Chairman Hersey advised that the Baldwin County TSPLOST was defeated and thanked this 

board and Putnam voters for passing it here; also received a letter from Mayor Rocker 

announcing his resignation from the EPWSA board and designating his son, Walt Rocker III, to 

replace him. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

17



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 13, 2018 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Addison 
 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:38 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

18



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 19 of 35 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Discussion and possible action regarding the Resolution to Amend ACCG Defined Benefit for 

Putnam County employees (staff-CM) 

  

19



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-5826 ◊ Fax: 706-923-2345 ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Date: 12/07/2018 
 

To: BOC 
 

From: County Manager 
 

Item: Discussion and possible action regarding the Resolution to Amend 
ACCG Defined Benefit for Putnam County employees 

 
 

NOTES 
 

The employees would have the option to convert excess leave into a 457 
plan once per year.  Currently, excess leave is credited toward time of 

service.  All contributions to the plan would be funded within the constraints 

of the current departmental budget. 

20



RESOLUTION TO AMEND ADOPTION AGREEMENT FOR 
ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA 

457(b) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR 
PUTNAM COUNTY EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, Putnam County, Georgia (the “Employer”) through the Putnam County 

Board of Commissioners, previously adopted the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 

457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan for Putnam County Employees (the “Plan”) for the benefit 

of its eligible employees, through an Adoption Agreement that was most recently amended and 

restated effective January 1, 2013;  

WHEREAS, Section 11.01(a) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the elective 

provisions of Adoption Agreement at any time; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend the Adoption Agreement to provide for an 

annual Employer Discretionary Contribution equal to the value of the Employee’s excess annual 

leave, unless the Employee elects to have the excess annual leave added to his or her Credited 

Service under the Association County Commissioners Defined Benefit Plan for Putnam County 

Employees. 

NOW THEREFORE, at a meeting held on the __ day of ___________, 2018, the 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners adopts the attached Amendment #1 to be effective as of 

January 1, 2019. 

FURTHER RESOLVED that Commission Chair is hereby authorized, empowered, and 

directed to take all further actions and to execute all documents necessary to implement these 

resolutions.  

FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution in conflict with this resolution is hereby 

repealed. 

This ______ day of _________________, 2018. 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Chair, Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

Attest: 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 County Clerk 

 

21



RESOLUTION TO AMEND  
ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA 

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN FOR PUTNAM COUNTY EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, Putnam County, Georgia (the “Employer”) through the Putnam County 

Board of Commissioners, previously adopted the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 

Defined Benefit Plan for Putnam County Employees (the “Plan”) through an Adoption 

Agreement that was most recently amended and restated effective January 1, 2015;  

WHEREAS, Section 16.02(a) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the Plan with 

the consent of the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Defined Benefit Plan Board of 

Trustees; 

WHEREAS, Section 16.02(b) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the elective 

provisions of the Adoption Agreement at any time; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend the Plan and Adoption Agreement to allow 

an Employee to make an annual election to have his or her excess unused annual leave added to 

Credited Service under this Plan, in lieu of having an amount equal to the value of the 

Employee’s excess unused annual leave contributed to the Association County Commissioners 

of Georgia 457(b) Plan for Putman County Employees, as an Employer Discretionary Employer 

Contribution. 

NOW THEREFORE, at a meeting held on the __ day of ___________, 2018, the 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners adopts the attached Amendment #2 to be effective as of 

January 1, 2019. 

FURTHER RESOLVED that Commission Chair is hereby authorized, empowered, and 

directed to take all further actions and to execute all documents necessary to implement these 

resolutions.  

FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution in conflict with this resolution is hereby 

repealed. 

This ______ day of _________________, 2018. 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Chair, Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

 County Clerk 

 

22



AMENDMENT #1 TO 
ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA 

457(b) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN  
FOR PUTNAM COUNTY EMPLOYEES  

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into by Putnam County, Georgia (“the Employer”), by and through the 

Putnam County Board of Commissioners. 

 

                                                    W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the Employer maintains the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 457(b) Deferred 

Compensation Plan for Putnam County Employees (the “Plan”) for the benefit of its eligible employees, through an 

Adoption Agreement that was most recently amended and restated effective January 1, 2013; 

WHEREAS, Section 11.01(a) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the elective provisions of its 

Adoption Agreement at any time; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend the Adoption Agreement to provide for an annual Employer 

Discretionary Contribution equal to the value of the Employee’s excess annual leave, unless the Employee elects to 

have the excess annual leave added to his or her Credited Service under the Association County Commissioners 

Defined Benefit Plan for Putnam County Employees.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Employer hereby amends Adoption Agreement Section 3.04, Employer 

Contributions, by adding an Employer Discretionary Contribution effective January 1, 2019, as follows: 

 

 Employer Discretionary Contributions 

[--] No Discretionary Contributions 

[X] Discretionary Contributions as determined each year by the Employer using the following 

Allocation Formula: 

[--] Pro-Rata Based on Compensation 

Each Participant is credited with a portion of the Employer Contribution for the Plan 

Year equal to the ratio that the Participant’s Compensation for the Plan Year bears to all 

Participants’ Compensation for the Plan Year 

[--] Fixed Dollar Formula 

Each Participant shall be credited with an equal dollar amount 

[X] Other Formula (specify): An amount equal to the value of the Participant’s excess unused  

annual leave, unless the Participant elects to have such excess unused annual leave added 

to Credited Service under the ACCG Defined Benefit Plan for Putnam County 

Employees. Such election may be made on an annual basis, in the form and manner as 

determined by the Employer.  

 Discretionary Contributions shall be made: 

[--] On a payroll basis 

[X] On an annual basis 

[--] Other (specify):  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this 

Amendment on the date noted below.  

 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

By: _________________________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________________________________ 

23



AMENDMENT #2 TO 
ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA 

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN FOR PUTNAM COUNTY EMPLOYEES 
 
THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into by Putnam County, Georgia (the “Employer”) by and 

through the Putnam County Board of Commissioners. 

 

W I T N E S S E T H 

WHEREAS, the Employer maintains the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 

Defined Benefit Plan for Putnam County Employees (“the Plan”) for the benefit of its eligible employees, 

through an Adoption Agreement that was most recently amended and restated effective January 1, 2015; 

WHEREAS, Section 16.02(a) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the provisions of the 

Plan with the consent of the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Defined Benefit Plan Board 

of Trustees; 

WHEREAS, Section 16.02(b) of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the elective provisions 

of the Adoption Agreement at any time; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer desires to amend the Plan and Adoption Agreement to allow an 

Employee to make an annual election to have his or her excess unused annual leave added to Credited 

Service under this Plan, in lieu of having an amount equal to the value of the Employee’s excess unused 

annual leave contributed to the Association County Commissioners of Georgia 457(b) Plan for Putman 

County Employees as an Employer Discretionary Employer Contribution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan and Adoption Agreement are hereby amended effective 

January 1, 2019, as follows:  

1. Section 1.13 of the Adoption Agreement, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 

following: 

 1.13 CREDITED SERVICE.   

 Method of Measurement 

[--] Hours of Service Method 

[X] Elapsed Time Method 

 Adjustments to Credited Service Include Exclude 

 Maximum years of Credited Service [--] [X] 

 Maximum Years:     

 Unused sick leave [X] [--] 

 Unused annual leave [--] [--] 

 Eligibility Service [X] [--] 

 Service when no Participant contributions were made 

(for contributory plans only) 
[--] [--] 

 

24



2 
 

 

2. Section 1.13 of the Plan, Credited Service, is hereby amended to adding the following new 

subsection (c) to the end thereof:  

“(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, a Participant may make an 

election, on an annual basis, to have his or her excess unused annual leave added to Credited 

Service under this Plan, in lieu of having the value thereof contributed to Association County 

Commissioners of Georgia 457(b) Plan for Putman County Employees as an Employer 

Discretionary Contribution. Such election shall be in the form and at the time as determined by 

the Employer. If the Participant makes no election, such excess unused annual leave will not be 

added to Credited Service under this Plan. ” 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this 

Amendment on the date noted below. 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

By: ___________________________________________ 

Title: __________________________________________ 

Date: __________________________________________ 

ACCEPTED BY ACCG DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

By: ____________________________________________ 

Date:  __________________________________________ 

25



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 26 of 35 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
9. Discussion and possible action on additional paving (staff-CM) 

  

26



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-5826 ◊ Fax: 706-923-2345 ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Date: 12/07/2018 
 

To: BOC 
 

From: County Manager 
 

Item: Discussion and possible action on additional paving 
 

 
NOTES 

 
Per my previous email. 

 
Due to the very reasonable unit pricing submitted by Womack Paving, I 

asked Larry to investigate cost of paving some additional areas in the 

county. 
 

1. Recreation Dept- The front and rear parking lots and access road.  The 
grassy area has been removed and will be paved if approved.  

 ($248,200) 
2. Oconee Springs Park- The parking lot.  ($72,800) 

3. Animal Services -The front parking lot and side driveway-access road 
(to the incinerator).   ($19,000) 

 
The unit pricing provided in the Womack bid is being used. 

The estimated cost based on the quantities is $340,000. 
Funding will be from SPLOST #8. 

27



28



29



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 30 of 35 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Awarding of RFP 18-42001-002 Professional Engineering Design Services for Scott Road 

Extension (staff-CM) 

  

30



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-5826 ◊ Fax: 706-923-2345 ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Date: 12/07/2018 
 

To: BOC 
 

From: County Manager 
 

Item: Awarding of RFP 18-42001-002 Professional Engineering Design 
Services for Scott Road Extension 

 
 

NOTES 
 

RE: Scott Road Extension – Design Firm Recommendation 
        Summary of Process & Recommendation 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners identified the referenced 
project for TSPLOST funding in 2017.  

 
The engineering estimate provided to the BOC in February 2018 was 

$150,000 for Design Services. The schedule for completion of Design 
Services was approximated to be June 2019. 

 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) for Scott Road Extension Civil Engineering 

Design Services was posted on the county web site on November 1st, 
advertised in the Eatonton Messenger on November 8th, and placed on the 

DOAS and GLGA web sites. 
 

On November 28, 2018, seven (7) firms submitted technical and fee 
proposals. See attached Bid Tabulation spreadsheet.  

 

The Proposal Review Team evaluated the submitted proposals utilizing the 
attached Evaluation Matrix. This Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) 

process was utilized by the Review Team.  
 

The highest ranked firm was identified as Southeastern Engineering, Inc. 
(SEI). Their engineering fee was $116,750; which is $33,200 less than the 

31



engineering estimate of $150,000 in February 2018. Staff recommends SEI 

as the most qualified firm to perform this work. 
 

The County will need to procure the services of a geotechnical firm in 
January to perform a subsurface investigation. Some additional 

environmental permitting may still be required depending on the findings of 
the selected firm. It is expected that these additional costs, in additional to 

the engineering fees, will be less than $150,000. 
 

A future contract with a Right-of-Way (ROW) Acquisition firm will be 
presented to the BOC for approval in mid-2019 prior to the commencement 

of the ROW Phase.  
 

Staff expects design and permitting will be completed within 12-14 months. 
Right-of-Way and easement acquisition will take approximately 6 months. 

ROW and easement acquisition can occur prior to the completion of the final 

construction plans. The Construction Phase will begin in early 2020 with a 
bid package advertised, utility relocations and construction commencing mid 

2020 with a project completion in early 2021.  
 

Staff will attempt to accelerate the design tasks to allow for environmental 
permitting and ROW acquisition to occur earlier than the estimated dates 

provided herein.  
 

A contract will be prepared with the design firm once the BOC makes a 
determination on the staff’s recommendation.  

32



33



34



SCOTT ROAD EXTENSION ENGINEERING PROPOSAL EVALUATION MATRIX 
 MAX. POINTS 

(point allocation) 
CRITERIA CONSULTING FIRM 

WOOD GMC ARETE SEI PC SIMONTON GRIFFIN & 
DAVIS 

FALCON 

20 
1 pt = less than 5 submitted 
5 pt = 5 to 8 submitted 
20 pt  = all 9 submitted 

Responsiveness to Submission Criteria 
(III A.1 to III A.9) 

20 5 20 5 
Missing all 
submission 

requirements 

25 
5 pt = firm and PM experience with requirements 
very limited; weak presentation of examples  
10 pt = firm and PM has 2-3 examples of success 
although specificity  limited) 
15 pt = firm has more experience than PM – greater 
than 3 examples 
20 pt = PM has more experience on meeting 
requirements 
25 pt = PM and firm have significant and substantive 
experience meeting all requirements with > 3 
examples each 

Qualifications of Firm & Project Team 
Members 

• Qualifications of firm to complete tasks
within budget and on time, lead effective 
public meetings, “outside the box 
thinking” and dealing with  GDOT 
(examples) 

• Qualifications of assigned Project
Manager (PM) to complete tasks within 
budget and on time, lead effective public 
meetings, “outside the box thinking” and 
dealing with GDOT (examples) 

25 10 

GDOT 
experience of 
team limited 

25 10 
Some GDOT 

experience but 
not strong 

25 
0 pt = no clue! 
5 pt = Basic understanding w/ minimal understanding 
15 pt = good understanding w/ some detail 
25 pt = detailed explanation of  
how  to address most if not all the project issues 

Demonstrated Experience of Project 
Scope and Relevant Issues 

20 5 15 
Great understanding 
of project but “cut 
and paste” from 

another project was 
evident 

15 

10 
0 pt = clients provided but lacking good references 
5 pt = clients provided and good references 
10 pt = excellent references from clients 

References - Current & Former Clients 10 5 
NO GDOT 

clients 

10 5 

5 
0 pt = PM workload not well defined 
5 pt = detailed outline of current and future workload 

Demonstrated Experience and 
Willingness to Meet Project Deadlines 

5 0 5 5 

5 
0 pt = schedule provided but no explanation or not 
realistic, intangibles lacking 
5 pt = Good schedule and explained w/ intangibles 

Design Schedule Proposed & Intangibles 2.5 2.5 5 0 

10 
(low to high) 

Fee Schedule (if short listed) k 9
8 3 

6 
$189,000 

10 
$74,000 

 100 TOTAL POINTS 

8

20

25

15
did not walk site - did 
not discuss env. 
permitting; confused w/ 
this bring a local project 
and no state funding

10

5

5

1

20

25

7

20

10

5

5

92 93

no discussion 
of side street 
impacts

no discussion 
of side street 
impacts

4

20

20

20

10

5

5

84 81 30 86 50

TIE for 1st: GMC & SEI
2nd:  Griffin & Davis
3rd:  WOOD

$202,500 $124,336 $273,988.64 $116,750 $191,380

NOTE: SELECTION TEAM CHOSE SEI

35


	Top
	1. 20181207 BOC Welcome
	2. 20181207 BOC Invocation
	3. 20181207 BOC Pledge
	4. 20181207 BOC McAllister rezoning
	McCallister Rezoning Background.doc
	McCallister District Map.pdf
	McCallister Application2.pdf

	5. 20181207 BOC Public Comments
	6. 20181207 BOC Agenda Approval
	7. 20181207 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 11-13-18 BOC Minutes.docx

	8. 20181207 BOC Benefit Plan Change
	Benefit Plan Change Background.docx
	Putnam -  Res - Amend 457 2019 (leave election).doc
	Putnam -  Res Amend #2 DB 2019 (leave election).doc
	Putnam County 457 AA Amend #1 (contribution of leave pay).doc
	Putnam -Amend #2 (excess leave election).doc

	9. 20181207 BOC Paving
	Additional Paving Background Info.docx
	Womack Change Order #2.pdf

	10. 20181207 BOC Scott Road Ext
	Scott Road Ext Background Info.docx
	18-42001-002 Bid Tab Sheets Scott Road Extension Engineering Services.pdf
	SCOTT ROAD EXTENSION EVALUATION MATRIX2.pdf

	11. 20181207 BOC Special Presentations
	12. 20181207 BOC CM Report
	13. 20181207 BOC CA Report
	14. 20181207 BOC Comm Announcements
	15. 20181207 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

